
 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 1 of 7 

 
TOWN OF CUSHING 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Cushing Community Center 
Minutes of Meeting 

Monday, November 9, 2020 
 
 

Selectmen Present: Chair Alton Grover; Selectmen Craig Currie, Corey Jones, Martha Marchut, and 
Dan Staples  
 
Selectmen Absent: none  
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk Lisa Young 
 
Public Present: none 
 
1. Call to Order: Chair Alton Grover called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and a quorum was 
determined. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
3. Approve and Sign the Warrant:  
 
ACTION:  Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Craig Currie, to approve 2020 Warrants 
95 and 96. 
 
Discussion: Dan commented a “wow” on the truck repair bill. Corey asked why it was fixed when last 
year we all agreed to get estimates before repairs were made. Dan thought it was mentioned a while 
back that the trucks should be fixed and ready to go in case something fell through with the plowing 
contract. He also said that last year it was October before they saw a bill and it was really high. Corey 
said everyone talked about and agreed that they would get an estimate before any money was spent; it 
would then be discussed and decided on. Dan said he didn’t remember that. Corey also brought up the 
whole point of a contract, is that it’s legal binding come h--- or high water Jimmy has to keep our roads 
plowed and in the three year contract, we shouldn’t have to touch those trucks at all. Corey said he 
understood keeping the trucks for a year or something in case it’s a flop and we have to regroup. Dan 
said he would need to look back on the minutes of what Corey was saying adding he recalled a 
conversation saying they should be ready in case we need them. Dan also asked if Jim Kalloch had at 
one time mentioned he might want to lease them. Alton answered he wants to buy the newest one. 
Corey said it wasn’t pressing, we don’t need the truck this year so there was plenty of time to bring a 
$5,000 bill back for discussion before making repairs; he said it’s what was talked about and agreed 
upon and he feels there needs to be consistency to it. Martha asked if Corey had the minutes from the 
meeting he is referring to. He did and pointed out his key parts to the Board. Alton asked if he thinks the 
truck shouldn’t have been fixed. Corey said no, we’re in a contract. Alton said the steering box was gone 
and that can’t be fixed over night; say something did happen and we had to have it. Corey said he 
understands the mechanics behind it, he is just saying we could have seen the estimate before fixing. 
Corey said he isn’t trying to be a jerk, he’s just saying. He said he didn’t sign the warrant because he 
doesn’t agree with the way it was done. Alton said if he doesn’t agree then from now on anything to do 
with the roads or the plowing, they can appoint Corey and he will send all the calls to him. He said it 
won’t be a problem on his part. Corey said it’s nothing to do with Alton, we’re all five road commissioners. 
Alton said in the past thirty-six years the Selectman agreed that they trusted him to get the trucks going, 
so that’s why he’s done it. Corey said if it’s all five of them, they should all know beforehand and agree 
before paying repairs. Alton said it’s always a problem when it involves Corey, now is his chance to take 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 2 of 7 

over. Corey said one Selectman can not be road commissioner, it has to be all five, that’s the loophole. 
Martha said she would like to go back and look over the past minutes Corey had. Corey said he 
understands the past, he just thinks things need to be a lot more simple. Alton questioned simple, he 
said there’s a lot of times things aren’t simple, they’re a big problem. Martha said if he understands 
correctly, Corey is saying that things were done contradictory to what we agreed upon in the minutes; 
she feels it could be something to come back on at the next meeting. Craig said to make things crystal 
clear, we should make sure to get estimates and vote on things before spending money, adding he 
thought if something was over $1,000 it was was supposed to be done anyway. Alton said that’s fine, he 
was just saying how it was done in the past, the Selectman trusted him to get the trucks going. Craig 
didn’t feel it was a trust issue, it would also make it easier on Alton to have the decision be the whole 
Board. Craig said he felt better having the trucks for back up; adding if Kalloch was to go out of business, 
any bankruptcy would make that contract null and void. Alton then asked about where they were at with 
the other truck. Corey said it had been looked at within three days, but he didn’t think there was a rush. 
He said Joe told Corey that TJ had called him personally asking why they had Cushing’s truck. Corey 
said it wasn’t a question about TJ (Copeland’s) screwing the Town or anything like that, adding the two 
companies were only two things off of each other’s estimates. Corey said his point is bringing the 
business back to Town, a taxpayer in Town rather than in another town. He said it has nothing to do with 
TJ’s loyalty or work, he just thinks it seems right to keep things in Town, despite how things had been 
done in the past. Alton said going back in history, they used to go to Cushing Diesel all the time until they 
decided they wouldn’t work on plow trucks on Saturdays, or nights, and they wouldn’t change tires. 
That’s when they called Copeland’s and they said they will come out at night, change tires, and do it all; 
that’s why they went over there. Corey said right now we’re not doing our own roads, but if we were, then 
maybe a third truck as a spare would be an idea because if you ever lose a motor or a tranny it’s not 
going to be fixed overnight. Alton said they had that problem once and he took care of it, it was back on 
the road within an hour. Corey said the old truck is coming back, he didn’t see the sense to fix it since the 
quote was $10-12,000. Corey said apples to apples, the new truck needed almost half of what the old 
truck would need for a sticker, he felt that was a lot. Alton said that’s why Corey should be running the 
show, he seems to know more about it. Corey said same thing, back in November last year, you’ll read 
Alton said the same thing, “well you can do it.” Alton said what’s the problem with that, you don’t want to 
do it. Corey said we’re all road commissioners, we all should be doing it. He said all five of us being road 
commissioners is the loophole for one person to be doing it because one Selectman can not be a road 
commissioner. Dan read from the book, they can all five be them and still designate one person to 
oversee.  
 
     Motion Carried 4-1-0, Corey was against  
 
 
4. Review and approve the minutes of the October 26, 2020 meeting  
 
ACTION:  Selectwoman Martha Marchut made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to approve the 
minutes of the October 26, 2020 meeting as written 
 
Discussion: Martha commented that Sami needs to be commended on getting through those minutes. 
She added they had a lot of detail and some of it probably wasn’t that much fun for her to do.  

 
     Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
5. Additions and Changes to the Agenda:  
 
5a. Zoom Meetings 
 
ACTION:  Selectwoman Martha Marchut made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to have the next 
meeting held via Zoom which at that point they would decide about the following meeting 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 3 of 7 

 
Discussion: Dan announced that the Clam Board is going to Zoom meetings, as is St. George and 
South Thomaston. He said Thomaston was going to start going that way, too. Craig said they already 
had and said he was going to bring up the idea of going fully remote again, too, now that the school this 
week had gone to the yellow coding, which makes a hybrid schedule and no school on Wednesdays. 
Craig said it looks like it’s going to get worse before it gets better again, and he was going to suggest 
Zoom meetings for Selectman meetings. Dan said they had the choice, some still wanted to meet in 
person, and the ones that don’t can join by Zoom. He said he talked with the Town Manager, Kara today 
and she thought it was about to go all that way. Craig suggested maybe just making the next meeting 
Zoom, or hybrid, or not at all, but he felt with the way the school and other surrounding communities were 
going, we might want to consider going remote. Martha agreed with Craig. Corey said he was fine with it 
either way. Dan said at first he felt very strongly against it like Alton does, but what changed his way of 
thinking is now having a person in his family that he now has to be very protective of. Alton thought he 
was doing good, but he guesses he failed again. Dan said it has nothing to do with Alton, it has to do 
with public health. Martha pointed out it’s not about where you go, it’s not knowing where the rest of the 
people go.  
  
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
5b. Last Meeting 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Dan said he wanted to talk about he last meeting, adding he had come out of it so upset 
that he had called MMA lawyer the next day and asked if there was such a thing as bullying because he 
felt Martha had got hammered pretty hard. He said there was a time she was called a liar and there was 
a lot of swearing going on, and he said you shouldn’t be swearing because you’re elected officials. He 
said he feels we need to not do that and learn how to disagree. He said things should be discussed, get 
the point across, then move on without attacking another Select person. Dan said it’s unacceptable and 
he hopes it doesn’t happen again.  
 
5c. Cell Phone Use 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Dan said they had talked about the use of cell phones and how things should be done over 
the internet instead. He wanted to inform the Board of things that had gone on during the past two weeks 
over the phone. He said he got a call from Alton wanting to know why they burnt a fire in the Town 
Garage parking lot and left the debris; he wanted to know if Dan was going to the fire meeting that night. 
Dan said he went up and talked to them and they were going to clean it up and take care of it. He said 
another phone call was to Alton to let him know he was going to go up and look at the culvert. He said he 
also asked him if he had heard from the DEP in regard to a guy putting a driveway in down on Pleasant 
Point Rd. Dan said to him it didn’t really look legal and was close to the wet land and the guy didn’t have 
any permits. Dan said he also got a phone call about Davis Point Road having a fence in the road right of 
way and they went down and measured the fence. He said again, they didn’t use the internet, but it was 
something a phone call took care of and didn’t need the whole Board. He said they talked to the guy and 
explained to him that if it gets damaged the Town isn’t responsible and the guy ended up moving the 
fence back four feet. Dan said he got a call from Alton looking for the Warden’s phone number, too, as a 
hunter had come out of the Town House Loop trail with a gun, and being so close to school property that 
is a big no no. He also added he had contacted other towns by phone to let them know that the joint 
board (clamming) is going virtual. He said sometimes you just have to make calls; you can’t do 
everything on the internet. He said he also called to check on Martha and see how she was doing 
because he felt she had a verbal assault the last meeting.  
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 4 of 7 

5d. Cross Road culvert 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said Josh Mitchell was in and asked about his culvert; adding it backs up really bad in 
the winter and backs into Prior Lane. Lisa said it is DOT. Alton said yes it is and it’s happened before. He 
said he’s called them and they jet it. Josh said it was still a problem and he’s tried to clean it out and 
wasn’t sure if it could be fixed. Alton said the pitch is a big problem there too, Lisa said that was what 
Josh had said, too. She asked Alton if he would call DOT about it. Alton said he can, and asked if that’s 
okay if he does that.  
 
5e. HAZCOM program 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said back in September when the fellow came to look at all the Town buildings, we 
need a HAZCOM policy that can be Town Office specific policy. She said the issue was that we have 
chemicals for cleaning, and we don’t have the SDS sheets, so we need to find out what PPE should be 
used and provide any training. She said we need a policy for this. Martha said it’s pretty standard 
practice. Martha thought you could probably get a sample policy from MMA. Lisa said the packet she had 
came from MMA. Lisa wanted the Board to check it over and suggested it can be added to the next 
agenda.  
 
5f. Fire Station bathroom 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said she received a bill from Lewis Orff and said if he is considered an employee, he 
really should be noting his days, times, and what was done rather than something she can’t even make 
out what it says. Lisa said she called, and he clarified it was half of the estimate. Corey said a date with 
the hours and what he did that day would be better. Dan agreed, more detail. Lisa said even added using 
one of the office employee’s time sheets would be good. Corey asked where the bathroom was at, he 
said he had looked quickly, and it looked like someone had been using the toilet (that isn’t hooked up). 
Alton said he brought a jack hammer for them and the cement is now almost ready to go. Alton said 
nobody gets nothing done, it’s been going on for a couple months now. Corey said it probably should 
have just gone out to bid from the get-go and it would have been done. Dan said he thought Lewis 
thought he could do it pretty reasonable, but it turned into more than he thought. Craig asked who was in 
charge of the whole project, Clarence. Alton said it should be, but it doesn’t seem to be, adding he’s not 
grabbing the bull by the horns and getting it done. Alton said he isn’t getting anything out of it, it should 
be the fire chief not him, but nobody seems to take the initiative to make things happen. Craig said in the 
future hiring it out would be a good idea, then you have someone to hold responsible if things aren’t 
getting done reasonably. He said you know going in it might cost a little more but there is someone to 
hold responsible. The discussion on the bathroom renovation moving forward continued.  
 
 
 
 
6. Unfinished Business 
 
 
6a. Town road speed limit 
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 5 of 7 

ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Alton Grover, to send a letter to Dave 
Allen (head of speed limits) from DOT requesting a speed limit review of Killeran Lane, McCarter Point 
Road, and Davis Point Road 
 
Discussion: Alton said they need to write Dave Allen in Augusta a letter from the Select Board to tell him 
that they need a review of Killeran Lane. Alton said while he’s here doing that one, he wondered about 
having him do McCarter Point and Davis Point, too, adding they don’t have speed limit signs either. 
Corey thought it was a good idea, adding when the road isn’t posted the speed is automatically 45 mph 
which isn’t good on any of those three roads.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
6b. Cushing Community Center 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Corey said he has been playing phone tag with Chris (in regard to fans in gym). Corey said 
he will call him again in the morning. Lisa reminded the money just needs to be done by the end of 
December for the grant money to be used. Alton said if he’s going to call him, touch base with him about 
the light at the Fire Station, too. Corey said he showed Peter while he was here. He said he didn’t show 
him the bathroom though. Alton said they want electricity run for the washer/dryer. Corey said the fans in 
the bathroom over there are dummied out, so the moisture goes right up in the ceiling.  
  
 
 
7. New Business 
 
7a. Outside light and doorstep exiting the gym area 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Alton Grover, to have Miller & Miller look 
at the doorstep and get a quote 
 
Discussion: Lisa said during voting the other night we had to re-route people once it got dark because 
the outside light wasn’t working. She added that the step is also very big, even worse at night when it’s 
harder to see. Dan suggested new steps. Alton asked if you need new ones or can you jack them up. 
Dan thought if you jack them up to make the top one good, the bottom one will then be big. Corey 
thought the roof was supported on the steps, Alton thought that actually sounded right. Dan checked and 
confirmed the overhang does connect right to the step. Lisa asked about a ramp. Corey thought that 
would be an insurance question, saying if there was a fire in one end of the gym, that would be the only 
exit for someone in a wheelchair. Dan suggested having Miller & Miller check it out and make a 
recommendation and get a quote.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
7b. Snowplow truck 
 
ACTION: none taken  
 
Discussion: Alton asked if anything was going to be done with the old truck. Corey felt it could be 
auctioned off as it’s in pretty hard shape. Dan said last year it got about $16,000 in repairs. Craig said it 
would probably be better to have a new truck if we go back into the plowing anyway. Corey said if that 
2007 truck sits for three years, then to try to use it again, things won’t move like they should. Alton said 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 6 of 7 

Martha didn’t think it would sell very good without a sticker, but he knew someone who wants it.  Martha 
asked if putting the $10-12,000 additional into it, would it increase the value. Alton answered it might or it 
might not, could make it sell quicker. Corey said now is the time to put it out to bid, going into winter. He 
said if he personally was looking for a truck to use, he would buy it because he could fix it himself for 
probably a third of the quoted repairs. Martha asked if it would pass inspection as is; Corey said no. Alton 
asked what the Board wants to do. Corey felt it should be put out to bid. Dan said if it goes out to bid will 
the sander and stainless body go with it. Corey added it then needs to be taken apart. He said all the 
other trucks have been sold as a whole. Craig suggested with them you could get a better price too. He 
asked how the Town goes about selling. Alton said out to bid. Dan asked if there would be a minimum 
bid. Corey thought there should be. Alton said Hoppe was willing to do the tree work at the cemetery with 
some in trade towards the truck. Lisa reminded that they can accept or reject all bids. Corey said 
Craigslist is a good place to advertise. Craig asked if there was a KBB version to get a rough estimate of 
the value for something like this. The Board continued discussion and ended up deciding it would be 
posted to go out to bid with a minimum bid of $18,000. 
 
 
7c. Town Garage 
 
ACTION: none taken  
 
Discussion: Corey asked the thoughts moving forward and asked if Jimmy had shown any interest in 
wanting the use of it. Alton said he was asked if they could put their loader and maybe one truck in the 
garage to keep it in town. Dan said it couldn’t be done for nothing. Lisa agreed, adding for insurance 
reasons. Dan also added there are lights and heat. Alton said the other question was if there isn’t 
anything in the garage do we keep the heat on because there is water in there. Corey asked if was 
something that could be shut off, Alton said it can’t. Lisa suggested Jimmy could lease the building. Dan 
suggested maybe $800-1000 a month would cover costs. Corey said we have a truck in there too and 
asked what would happen if that got hit by them. Craig said their insurance would have to pick that up. 
Craig felt the bigger question would be asking MMA if a private company’s equipment can be kept in a 
town garage. Corey then said if the old truck doesn’t sell, there isn’t room for three trucks and a loader. 
Alton thought the old one wouldn’t have to be kept inside. Craig felt tabling this until we have the 
insurance information would be best.  
 
 
7d. LifeFlight Foundation 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Martha Marchut, to approve allowing 
LifeFlight of Maine to use an online petition website to gather the necessary signatures needed for a 
donation request on the annual Town Meeting Warrant 
 
Discussion: Lisa said they received a request in which LifeFlight would like to receive money for the 
social agencies’ monies at Town Meeting. Lisa said for the first time a new company is added there is a 
petition that needs to be completed. Lisa said they asked that due to COVID and how hard it can be to 
gather signatures during this time if they would be allowed to be an online petition on change.org to get 
the 75 signatures as the request to be put on the Town Warrant. She said a representative would have to 
attend Town Meeting, as well. Dan said he didn’t see a problem adding he has donated to LifeFlight 
himself. Craig said the Rescue Squad donates to them annually, too.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
7e. School Choice Week 
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 7 of 7 

ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to recognize January 24-
30 as School Choice Week in Cushing 
 
Discussion: Lisa said this is something that was in the new mail and asked if the Board wants to 
address it. Dan said it was done last year as well.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
7f. Norton Cemetery 
 
ACTION: Selectman Corey Jones made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to transfer $600.00 from 
Norton Cemetery Account to the Ancient Cemetery Account 
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to transfer $1,600.00 from 
Pleasant View Cemetery Account to the Norton Cemetery Account 
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
Discussion: Craig said Bob Weisert had a $1700 quote to repair the Killeran Lane cemetery that was 
authorized for repairs. The work is done, but an additional $200 did accrue. Dan also reminded that they 
need to come up with money for the trees and stuff too. Craig said there is only $1400 in the Ancient 
Cemetery account and they need at least another $500. Martha said in the past they have taken from 
other cemetery accounts. Corey said Pleasant and Norton were the ones they had talked about money 
coming from for the trees. Craig thought the tree work was going to wait until next year. Corey thought 
they were looking at the legality of what would happen if the trees fell. Dan remembered that too adding if 
they fell over the winter the damage would cost a lot more than the removal costs. Alton thought they 
should be cut sooner than later too, if they can be. Corey said it would basically drain all three of the 
accounts. Dan said some extra should be put in those accounts over the next few years to cover things 
like this. Craig said he knew of someone who had tree work done by someone who had saved them a lot 
of money, he said he would get the name from them for a second estimate. Corey suggested trying 
Benner’s too. Alton said the turkeys have gone up over the hill at Pleasant View Cemetery and it looks 
like something that could have been done with a rototiller.  
 
 
 
8. Comments from Citizens: none 
 
 
 

9. Adjourn 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to adjourn at 7:37 p.m.  
           
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Samantha Jones 
Recording Secretary 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 1 of 7 

 
TOWN OF CUSHING 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Cushing Community Center 
Minutes of Meeting 

Monday, November 9, 2020 
 
 

Selectmen Present: Chair Alton Grover; Selectmen Craig Currie, Corey Jones, Martha Marchut, and 
Dan Staples  
 
Selectmen Absent: none  
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk Lisa Young 
 
Public Present: none 
 
1. Call to Order: Chair Alton Grover called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and a quorum was 
determined. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
3. Approve and Sign the Warrant:  
 
ACTION:  Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Craig Currie, to approve 2020 Warrants 
95 and 96. 
 
Discussion: Dan commented a “wow” on the truck repair bill. Corey asked why it was fixed when last 
year we all agreed to get estimates before repairs were made. Dan thought it was mentioned a while 
back that the trucks should be fixed and ready to go in case something fell through with the plowing 
contract. He also said that last year it was October before they saw a bill and it was really high. Corey 
said everyone talked about and agreed that they would get an estimate before any money was spent; it 
would then be discussed and decided on. Dan said he didn’t remember that. Corey also brought up the 
whole point of a contract, is that it’s legal binding come h--- or high water Jimmy has to keep our roads 
plowed and in the three year contract, we shouldn’t have to touch those trucks at all. Corey said he 
understood keeping the trucks for a year or something in case it’s a flop and we have to regroup. Dan 
said he would need to look back on the minutes of what Corey was saying adding he recalled a 
conversation saying they should be ready in case we need them. Dan also asked if Jim Kalloch had at 
one time mentioned he might want to lease them. Alton answered he wants to buy the newest one. 
Corey said it wasn’t pressing, we don’t need the truck this year so there was plenty of time to bring a 
$5,000 bill back for discussion before making repairs; he said it’s what was talked about and agreed 
upon and he feels there needs to be consistency to it. Martha asked if Corey had the minutes from the 
meeting he is referring to. He did and pointed out his key parts to the Board. Alton asked if he thinks the 
truck shouldn’t have been fixed. Corey said no, we’re in a contract. Alton said the steering box was gone 
and that can’t be fixed over night; say something did happen and we had to have it. Corey said he 
understands the mechanics behind it, he is just saying we could have seen the estimate before fixing. 
Corey said he isn’t trying to be a jerk, he’s just saying. He said he didn’t sign the warrant because he 
doesn’t agree with the way it was done. Alton said if he doesn’t agree then from now on anything to do 
with the roads or the plowing, they can appoint Corey and he will send all the calls to him. He said it 
won’t be a problem on his part. Corey said it’s nothing to do with Alton, we’re all five road commissioners. 
Alton said in the past thirty-six years the Selectman agreed that they trusted him to get the trucks going, 
so that’s why he’s done it. Corey said if it’s all five of them, they should all know beforehand and agree 
before paying repairs. Alton said it’s always a problem when it involves Corey, now is his chance to take 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 2 of 7 

over. Corey said one Selectman can not be road commissioner, it has to be all five, that’s the loophole. 
Martha said she would like to go back and look over the past minutes Corey had. Corey said he 
understands the past, he just thinks things need to be a lot more simple. Alton questioned simple, he 
said there’s a lot of times things aren’t simple, they’re a big problem. Martha said if he understands 
correctly, Corey is saying that things were done contradictory to what we agreed upon in the minutes; 
she feels it could be something to come back on at the next meeting. Craig said to make things crystal 
clear, we should make sure to get estimates and vote on things before spending money, adding he 
thought if something was over $1,000 it was was supposed to be done anyway. Alton said that’s fine, he 
was just saying how it was done in the past, the Selectman trusted him to get the trucks going. Craig 
didn’t feel it was a trust issue, it would also make it easier on Alton to have the decision be the whole 
Board. Craig said he felt better having the trucks for back up; adding if Kalloch was to go out of business, 
any bankruptcy would make that contract null and void. Alton then asked about where they were at with 
the other truck. Corey said it had been looked at within three days, but he didn’t think there was a rush. 
He said Joe told Corey that TJ had called him personally asking why they had Cushing’s truck. Corey 
said it wasn’t a question about TJ (Copeland’s) screwing the Town or anything like that, adding the two 
companies were only two things off of each other’s estimates. Corey said his point is bringing the 
business back to Town, a taxpayer in Town rather than in another town. He said it has nothing to do with 
TJ’s loyalty or work, he just thinks it seems right to keep things in Town, despite how things had been 
done in the past. Alton said going back in history, they used to go to Cushing Diesel all the time until they 
decided they wouldn’t work on plow trucks on Saturdays, or nights, and they wouldn’t change tires. 
That’s when they called Copeland’s and they said they will come out at night, change tires, and do it all; 
that’s why they went over there. Corey said right now we’re not doing our own roads, but if we were, then 
maybe a third truck as a spare would be an idea because if you ever lose a motor or a tranny it’s not 
going to be fixed overnight. Alton said they had that problem once and he took care of it, it was back on 
the road within an hour. Corey said the old truck is coming back, he didn’t see the sense to fix it since the 
quote was $10-12,000. Corey said apples to apples, the new truck needed almost half of what the old 
truck would need for a sticker, he felt that was a lot. Alton said that’s why Corey should be running the 
show, he seems to know more about it. Corey said same thing, back in November last year, you’ll read 
Alton said the same thing, “well you can do it.” Alton said what’s the problem with that, you don’t want to 
do it. Corey said we’re all road commissioners, we all should be doing it. He said all five of us being road 
commissioners is the loophole for one person to be doing it because one Selectman can not be a road 
commissioner. Dan read from the book, they can all five be them and still designate one person to 
oversee.  
 
     Motion Carried 4-1-0, Corey was against  
 
 
4. Review and approve the minutes of the October 26, 2020 meeting  
 
ACTION:  Selectwoman Martha Marchut made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to approve the 
minutes of the October 26, 2020 meeting as written 
 
Discussion: Martha commented that Sami needs to be commended on getting through those minutes. 
She added they had a lot of detail and some of it probably wasn’t that much fun for her to do.  

 
     Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
5. Additions and Changes to the Agenda:  
 
5a. Zoom Meetings 
 
ACTION:  Selectwoman Martha Marchut made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to have the next 
meeting held via Zoom which at that point they would decide about the following meeting 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 3 of 7 

 
Discussion: Dan announced that the Clam Board is going to Zoom meetings, as is St. George and 
South Thomaston. He said Thomaston was going to start going that way, too. Craig said they already 
had and said he was going to bring up the idea of going fully remote again, too, now that the school this 
week had gone to the yellow coding, which makes a hybrid schedule and no school on Wednesdays. 
Craig said it looks like it’s going to get worse before it gets better again, and he was going to suggest 
Zoom meetings for Selectman meetings. Dan said they had the choice, some still wanted to meet in 
person, and the ones that don’t can join by Zoom. He said he talked with the Town Manager, Kara today 
and she thought it was about to go all that way. Craig suggested maybe just making the next meeting 
Zoom, or hybrid, or not at all, but he felt with the way the school and other surrounding communities were 
going, we might want to consider going remote. Martha agreed with Craig. Corey said he was fine with it 
either way. Dan said at first he felt very strongly against it like Alton does, but what changed his way of 
thinking is now having a person in his family that he now has to be very protective of. Alton thought he 
was doing good, but he guesses he failed again. Dan said it has nothing to do with Alton, it has to do 
with public health. Martha pointed out it’s not about where you go, it’s not knowing where the rest of the 
people go.  
  
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
5b. Last Meeting 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Dan said he wanted to talk about he last meeting, adding he had come out of it so upset 
that he had called MMA lawyer the next day and asked if there was such a thing as bullying because he 
felt Martha had got hammered pretty hard. He said there was a time she was called a liar and there was 
a lot of swearing going on, and he said you shouldn’t be swearing because you’re elected officials. He 
said he feels we need to not do that and learn how to disagree. He said things should be discussed, get 
the point across, then move on without attacking another Select person. Dan said it’s unacceptable and 
he hopes it doesn’t happen again.  
 
5c. Cell Phone Use 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Dan said they had talked about the use of cell phones and how things should be done over 
the internet instead. He wanted to inform the Board of things that had gone on during the past two weeks 
over the phone. He said he got a call from Alton wanting to know why they burnt a fire in the Town 
Garage parking lot and left the debris; he wanted to know if Dan was going to the fire meeting that night. 
Dan said he went up and talked to them and they were going to clean it up and take care of it. He said 
another phone call was to Alton to let him know he was going to go up and look at the culvert. He said he 
also asked him if he had heard from the DEP in regard to a guy putting a driveway in down on Pleasant 
Point Rd. Dan said to him it didn’t really look legal and was close to the wet land and the guy didn’t have 
any permits. Dan said he also got a phone call about Davis Point Road having a fence in the road right of 
way and they went down and measured the fence. He said again, they didn’t use the internet, but it was 
something a phone call took care of and didn’t need the whole Board. He said they talked to the guy and 
explained to him that if it gets damaged the Town isn’t responsible and the guy ended up moving the 
fence back four feet. Dan said he got a call from Alton looking for the Warden’s phone number, too, as a 
hunter had come out of the Town House Loop trail with a gun, and being so close to school property that 
is a big no no. He also added he had contacted other towns by phone to let them know that the joint 
board (clamming) is going virtual. He said sometimes you just have to make calls; you can’t do 
everything on the internet. He said he also called to check on Martha and see how she was doing 
because he felt she had a verbal assault the last meeting.  
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 4 of 7 

5d. Cross Road culvert 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said Josh Mitchell was in and asked about his culvert; adding it backs up really bad in 
the winter and backs into Prior Lane. Lisa said it is DOT. Alton said yes it is and it’s happened before. He 
said he’s called them and they jet it. Josh said it was still a problem and he’s tried to clean it out and 
wasn’t sure if it could be fixed. Alton said the pitch is a big problem there too, Lisa said that was what 
Josh had said, too. She asked Alton if he would call DOT about it. Alton said he can, and asked if that’s 
okay if he does that.  
 
5e. HAZCOM program 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said back in September when the fellow came to look at all the Town buildings, we 
need a HAZCOM policy that can be Town Office specific policy. She said the issue was that we have 
chemicals for cleaning, and we don’t have the SDS sheets, so we need to find out what PPE should be 
used and provide any training. She said we need a policy for this. Martha said it’s pretty standard 
practice. Martha thought you could probably get a sample policy from MMA. Lisa said the packet she had 
came from MMA. Lisa wanted the Board to check it over and suggested it can be added to the next 
agenda.  
 
5f. Fire Station bathroom 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Lisa said she received a bill from Lewis Orff and said if he is considered an employee, he 
really should be noting his days, times, and what was done rather than something she can’t even make 
out what it says. Lisa said she called, and he clarified it was half of the estimate. Corey said a date with 
the hours and what he did that day would be better. Dan agreed, more detail. Lisa said even added using 
one of the office employee’s time sheets would be good. Corey asked where the bathroom was at, he 
said he had looked quickly, and it looked like someone had been using the toilet (that isn’t hooked up). 
Alton said he brought a jack hammer for them and the cement is now almost ready to go. Alton said 
nobody gets nothing done, it’s been going on for a couple months now. Corey said it probably should 
have just gone out to bid from the get-go and it would have been done. Dan said he thought Lewis 
thought he could do it pretty reasonable, but it turned into more than he thought. Craig asked who was in 
charge of the whole project, Clarence. Alton said it should be, but it doesn’t seem to be, adding he’s not 
grabbing the bull by the horns and getting it done. Alton said he isn’t getting anything out of it, it should 
be the fire chief not him, but nobody seems to take the initiative to make things happen. Craig said in the 
future hiring it out would be a good idea, then you have someone to hold responsible if things aren’t 
getting done reasonably. He said you know going in it might cost a little more but there is someone to 
hold responsible. The discussion on the bathroom renovation moving forward continued.  
 
 
 
 
6. Unfinished Business 
 
 
6a. Town road speed limit 
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 5 of 7 

ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Alton Grover, to send a letter to Dave 
Allen (head of speed limits) from DOT requesting a speed limit review of Killeran Lane, McCarter Point 
Road, and Davis Point Road 
 
Discussion: Alton said they need to write Dave Allen in Augusta a letter from the Select Board to tell him 
that they need a review of Killeran Lane. Alton said while he’s here doing that one, he wondered about 
having him do McCarter Point and Davis Point, too, adding they don’t have speed limit signs either. 
Corey thought it was a good idea, adding when the road isn’t posted the speed is automatically 45 mph 
which isn’t good on any of those three roads.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
6b. Cushing Community Center 
 
ACTION: none taken 
 
Discussion: Corey said he has been playing phone tag with Chris (in regard to fans in gym). Corey said 
he will call him again in the morning. Lisa reminded the money just needs to be done by the end of 
December for the grant money to be used. Alton said if he’s going to call him, touch base with him about 
the light at the Fire Station, too. Corey said he showed Peter while he was here. He said he didn’t show 
him the bathroom though. Alton said they want electricity run for the washer/dryer. Corey said the fans in 
the bathroom over there are dummied out, so the moisture goes right up in the ceiling.  
  
 
 
7. New Business 
 
7a. Outside light and doorstep exiting the gym area 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Alton Grover, to have Miller & Miller look 
at the doorstep and get a quote 
 
Discussion: Lisa said during voting the other night we had to re-route people once it got dark because 
the outside light wasn’t working. She added that the step is also very big, even worse at night when it’s 
harder to see. Dan suggested new steps. Alton asked if you need new ones or can you jack them up. 
Dan thought if you jack them up to make the top one good, the bottom one will then be big. Corey 
thought the roof was supported on the steps, Alton thought that actually sounded right. Dan checked and 
confirmed the overhang does connect right to the step. Lisa asked about a ramp. Corey thought that 
would be an insurance question, saying if there was a fire in one end of the gym, that would be the only 
exit for someone in a wheelchair. Dan suggested having Miller & Miller check it out and make a 
recommendation and get a quote.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
7b. Snowplow truck 
 
ACTION: none taken  
 
Discussion: Alton asked if anything was going to be done with the old truck. Corey felt it could be 
auctioned off as it’s in pretty hard shape. Dan said last year it got about $16,000 in repairs. Craig said it 
would probably be better to have a new truck if we go back into the plowing anyway. Corey said if that 
2007 truck sits for three years, then to try to use it again, things won’t move like they should. Alton said 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 6 of 7 

Martha didn’t think it would sell very good without a sticker, but he knew someone who wants it.  Martha 
asked if putting the $10-12,000 additional into it, would it increase the value. Alton answered it might or it 
might not, could make it sell quicker. Corey said now is the time to put it out to bid, going into winter. He 
said if he personally was looking for a truck to use, he would buy it because he could fix it himself for 
probably a third of the quoted repairs. Martha asked if it would pass inspection as is; Corey said no. Alton 
asked what the Board wants to do. Corey felt it should be put out to bid. Dan said if it goes out to bid will 
the sander and stainless body go with it. Corey added it then needs to be taken apart. He said all the 
other trucks have been sold as a whole. Craig suggested with them you could get a better price too. He 
asked how the Town goes about selling. Alton said out to bid. Dan asked if there would be a minimum 
bid. Corey thought there should be. Alton said Hoppe was willing to do the tree work at the cemetery with 
some in trade towards the truck. Lisa reminded that they can accept or reject all bids. Corey said 
Craigslist is a good place to advertise. Craig asked if there was a KBB version to get a rough estimate of 
the value for something like this. The Board continued discussion and ended up deciding it would be 
posted to go out to bid with a minimum bid of $18,000. 
 
 
7c. Town Garage 
 
ACTION: none taken  
 
Discussion: Corey asked the thoughts moving forward and asked if Jimmy had shown any interest in 
wanting the use of it. Alton said he was asked if they could put their loader and maybe one truck in the 
garage to keep it in town. Dan said it couldn’t be done for nothing. Lisa agreed, adding for insurance 
reasons. Dan also added there are lights and heat. Alton said the other question was if there isn’t 
anything in the garage do we keep the heat on because there is water in there. Corey asked if was 
something that could be shut off, Alton said it can’t. Lisa suggested Jimmy could lease the building. Dan 
suggested maybe $800-1000 a month would cover costs. Corey said we have a truck in there too and 
asked what would happen if that got hit by them. Craig said their insurance would have to pick that up. 
Craig felt the bigger question would be asking MMA if a private company’s equipment can be kept in a 
town garage. Corey then said if the old truck doesn’t sell, there isn’t room for three trucks and a loader. 
Alton thought the old one wouldn’t have to be kept inside. Craig felt tabling this until we have the 
insurance information would be best.  
 
 
7d. LifeFlight Foundation 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Martha Marchut, to approve allowing 
LifeFlight of Maine to use an online petition website to gather the necessary signatures needed for a 
donation request on the annual Town Meeting Warrant 
 
Discussion: Lisa said they received a request in which LifeFlight would like to receive money for the 
social agencies’ monies at Town Meeting. Lisa said for the first time a new company is added there is a 
petition that needs to be completed. Lisa said they asked that due to COVID and how hard it can be to 
gather signatures during this time if they would be allowed to be an online petition on change.org to get 
the 75 signatures as the request to be put on the Town Warrant. She said a representative would have to 
attend Town Meeting, as well. Dan said he didn’t see a problem adding he has donated to LifeFlight 
himself. Craig said the Rescue Squad donates to them annually, too.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
7e. School Choice Week 
 



 

Cushing Selectmen Minutes                                                                    11/09/2020  Page 7 of 7 

ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to recognize January 24-
30 as School Choice Week in Cushing 
 
Discussion: Lisa said this is something that was in the new mail and asked if the Board wants to 
address it. Dan said it was done last year as well.  
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
7f. Norton Cemetery 
 
ACTION: Selectman Corey Jones made a motion, seconded by Dan Staples, to transfer $600.00 from 
Norton Cemetery Account to the Ancient Cemetery Account 
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to transfer $1,600.00 from 
Pleasant View Cemetery Account to the Norton Cemetery Account 
 
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
Discussion: Craig said Bob Weisert had a $1700 quote to repair the Killeran Lane cemetery that was 
authorized for repairs. The work is done, but an additional $200 did accrue. Dan also reminded that they 
need to come up with money for the trees and stuff too. Craig said there is only $1400 in the Ancient 
Cemetery account and they need at least another $500. Martha said in the past they have taken from 
other cemetery accounts. Corey said Pleasant and Norton were the ones they had talked about money 
coming from for the trees. Craig thought the tree work was going to wait until next year. Corey thought 
they were looking at the legality of what would happen if the trees fell. Dan remembered that too adding if 
they fell over the winter the damage would cost a lot more than the removal costs. Alton thought they 
should be cut sooner than later too, if they can be. Corey said it would basically drain all three of the 
accounts. Dan said some extra should be put in those accounts over the next few years to cover things 
like this. Craig said he knew of someone who had tree work done by someone who had saved them a lot 
of money, he said he would get the name from them for a second estimate. Corey suggested trying 
Benner’s too. Alton said the turkeys have gone up over the hill at Pleasant View Cemetery and it looks 
like something that could have been done with a rototiller.  
 
 
 
8. Comments from Citizens: none 
 
 
 

9. Adjourn 
 
ACTION: Selectman Dan Staples made a motion, seconded by Corey Jones, to adjourn at 7:37 p.m.  
           
 Motion Carried 5-0-0 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Samantha Jones 
Recording Secretary 


